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First Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

1. Bartolome' de Huertas. 

 

Bartolome' married Catalina de Moya. 

 

They had one child: 

 

 2. i. Bartolome' was born circa 1559 in Sevilla. 
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Second Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

2. Bartolome' de Moya.  

 

Bartolome’ was born circa 1559 in Sevilla, Andalusia, Castilla 

(Spain). Bartolome' first married Juana Rodriguez, daughter of Juan 

Sanguas & Elvira Rodriguez. She was born circa 1564 in Sevilla, 

Andalusia, Castilla (Spain). Juana died before January 27, 1614. 

Bartolome’ worked as a carpenter. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Geronima was born circa 1582 in Sevilla. 

 

ii. Isabel was born circa 1584 in Sevilla. 

 

iii. Alonso was born circa 1586 in Sevilla. 

 

iv. Marcos was born circa 1589 in Sevilla. 

 

v. Pedro was born circa 1591 in Sevilla. 

 

vi. Melchor was born circa 1593 in Sevilla. 

 

vii. Catalina was born circa 1597 in Sevilla. 

 

viii. Juan was born in January, 1599 in Sevilla. 

 

Bartolome' second married Leonor Suarez. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Bartolome' was baptized April 22, 1607 in Puebla de 

los Angeles, Nueva Espana.  

 

ii. Juan was married October 25, 1626 to Magdalena de 

Olibares, daughter of Pedro Gonzalez and Cecilia de 

Olibares in the Catedral de Puebla, Puebla de los 

Angeles, Nueva Espana. 

 

NOTE:  Bartolome’ and Juana had 8 children by June, 1599 born in 

Sevilla.  In Spring, 1599 they made preparations to journey to the New 

World, but waited until May, 1600 to leave Spain.  They settled at 

Puebla de los Angeles, Nueva Espana. 
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Third Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

3. Marcos de Moya.  

 

On January 27, 1614 when Marcos was 25, he married Maria de Toro, 

daughter of Cristobal de Quisada (Quesada) & Juana Perez, in the 

Catedral de Puebla. 

 

They had the following children: 

   

i. Joseph was baptized 17 March, 1619, Catedral de 

Puebla, Puebla de los Angeles. 

 

ii. Felipa was baptized May 10, 1620, Catedral de Puebla, 

Puebla de los Angeles. 

 

 4. iii. Antonio was born in Mexico City. 

 

NOTE:  Marcos and Maria remained in Puebla, where their first two 

children were born, until the 1620’s.  They then moved to Mexico City 

where Antonio was born.   
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Fourth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

4. Antonio De Moya. 

 

On October 27, 1641 Antonio and Magdalena de Rivera received their 

banns of marriage. Magdalena was the daughter of Francisco Martin & 

Louisa de Rivera.  They were married that same month in the Catedral 

de Mexico, Mexico City.  No marriage records have been located. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

5. i. Maria.  

 

 ii. Bernarda married Gregorio Pardo, son of Nicolas   

  Pardo & Juana de Medina. 

 

  iii. Diego. 

 

  iv. Antonia. 

 

  v. Joseph. 
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Fifth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

5. Maria de Moya. 

 

On November 7, 1666 Maria married Juan Moreno, a native of San 

Cristobal de la Havana, island of Cuba, residing in Mexico City and 

the son of Augustin Moreno & Justa Hernandez.  They received their 

banns of marriage on October 28, 1666 and were married in the Catedral 

de Mexico, Mexico City. 

 

They had one child: 

 

 6.  i. Antonio was born July 31, 1670 in Mexico City and died 

   circa 1719 in New Mexico. 
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Sixth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

6. Antonio de Moya.  

 

Antonio was baptized on July 31, 1670 at the Catedral de Mexico in 

Mexico City. Antonio worked as a mason.  On August 19, 1691 he 

received banns of marriage.  On August 26, 1691, when Antonio was 21, 

he married Francisca Antonia Morales (de Guijosa), daughter of Juan.  

As an adult, he chose to use his mother's surname of Moya rather than 

Moreno.  He entered Santa Fe on June 23, 1694 and maintained residence 

in Santa Fe, but may have also had land in the Santa Cruz area.  

Antonio died in New Mexico circa 1719 at the age of 48. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Maria Francisca was born December 11, 1693 in Presidio del 

Gallo, Nueva Vizcaya en route to New Mexico. 

 

ii. Francisco was born circa 1694-97. 

 

7.  iii.   Cayetano Jose' was born circa 1705. 

 

     iv.   Lucas Miguel was born circa 1710. He first married Juana 

       de Anaya Almazan, daughter of Francisco de Anaya Almazan II 

       and Felipa Sedillo Rico de Rojos, in Santa Fe. Juana de 

       Anaya died on November 17, 1736  and died after 1790 in his 

       80’s. Lucas Miguel died on September 21, 1731. 

 

When he was 21, Lucas Miguel second married Luciana Valdez. 

 

On September 15, 1755 when Lucas Miguel was 45, he third 

married Gertrudis de la Encarnacion Gonzales, who was born 

circa 1742. 

 

     v.    Juan Francisco (The Elder), was born in 1712 in Santa Fe.  

       On December 28, 1734 when Juan Francisco (The Elder) was 

       22, he married Josepha Lopes in Santa Fe. She was born in 

       1695. Josepha died in Albuquerque on February 15, 1760 when 

       she was 65.  He died circa 1770. 

 

  vi.  Pedro Antonio married Juana Ana Maria Dominguez, daughter 

       of Jose Dominguez and Geronima Varella. He died on December 

       8, 1816.  
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Seventh Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

7. Cayetano Jose' Moya.  

 

On December 31, 1721 when Cayetano Jose' was 16, he married Gertrudis 

Sanchez de Oton, daughter of Felipe Sanchez Altamirano & Alaya de 

Oton, in Santa Fe. She was born circa 1697 in Santa Fe, New Mexico.  

Within five years of marrying Cayetano, she died.  They had no 

children. 

 

On February 14, 1727 when Cayetano Jose' was 22, he married Manuela de 

Armijo, daughter of Jose Duran de Armijo and Maria Manuela Velasquez, 

in Santa Fe. He was born circa 1705 in Santa Fe, New Mexico. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

 8.  i. Juan Francisco (The Younger) was born 1730-1732 and 

   died circa 1800. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

ii. Manuel Antonio married Catalina Sandoval Montoya on  

  December 15, 1753. 

 

iii. Joseph (Jose’) Francisco was born in 1736. On August 

  16,1756 when Joseph was 20, he married Rosa Tafoya. 

 

iv. Bartolome' de Jesus was born on December 31, 1749 in 

Santa Fe. Bartolome' de Jesus married Luisa Tafoya and 

died in Santa Fe on December 10, 1772 when he was 22. 
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Eighth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

8. Juan Francisco Moya. (The Younger) 

 

Juan Francisco (The Younger) was born some time from 1730 to 1732.  It 

is assumed that he was born in Santa Fe.  Some time before 1753, when 

Juan Francisco was 23, he first married Luisa Duran.  They were most 

likely married in Albuquerque. Born in 1725, Luisa died in Tome’, New 

Mexico in 1791 when she was 66.  Juan Francisco died in Tome’ about 

1800, when he was about 70. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Jose Manuel Antonio was born circa 1753-54 in 

Albuquerque.  On February 25, 1777 when Jose Manuel 

Antonio was 24, he married Monica Maria Concepcion 

Perea, daughter of Alonzo Perea and Luisa Zamora. She 

was born in 1765. Monica Maria Concepcion died before 

1811. 

 

ii. Maria Dolores was born some time from 1760 to 1770.  

Maria Dolores died in San Fernando on March 15, 1826.  

 

iii. Maria Rosalia was born in 1762 in Albuquerque. She got 

married on May 25, 1786 when she was 24 and died in 

Tome’ on July 31, 1816. 

 

9.   iv. Juan Francisco Antonio was born in 1762 and died in 

   1839. 

 

  v. Maria Francisca 

 

On March 20, 1793, when Juan Francisco was 63, he second married Maria 

Margarita Chavez, daughter of Angel Chavez & Feliciana Gallegos, in 

Tome’. She was born on September 9, 1775. Maria Margarita died in 

Tome’ on August 21, 1821 when she was 45. He died about 1800. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Ana Maria was married on September 2, 1822 to Jose 

Anastacio Mirabal, son of Antonio Mirabal and Maria 

Peralta, in Tome’. 

 

ii. Jose Manuel Antonio was married on September 2, 1819 

to Antonia Tereza Montolla, daughter of Matilda 

Montolla in Tome’. They had eight children: Jose 

Maria, born on April 22, 1822 in Tome’; Jose Antonio, 

born in 1826;  Antonio de Jesus, died on January 9, 

1827 in Tome’; Maria Petra, born on September 19, 

1837 in Tome’;  Maria Lugarda, born on July 19, 1839; 

Maria Felipa, born on March 30, 1841; Maria Antonia 
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Balentina, born on May 8, 1845 in Tome’; Gertrudis, 

who married Marcos Jaramillo on February 20, 1853). 

  

Jose Antonio (see above) On February, 9 1846 when 

Jose Antonio was 20, he married Maria Emiliana 

Baca, daughter of Mariano Baca and Maria Antonia 

Vallejo, in Belen. Maria Emiliana died on 

September 6, 1867, she was 36.  They had one 

child, Miguel. Miguel married Asencion Chavez. 

 

 

NOTE:  It is interesting that Juan Francisco Moya and Louisa Duran are 

documented as the godparents at the baptism of a Christobal Moya on 

October 4, 1753, Spanish, with unknown parents.  Could they have 

raised this child as their own?  There is no record of this Christobal 

following this baptism.  If he lived with them and went to Carnuel 

with the family, it is possible that he was killed there by the 

Indians.  And, it is possible that the Cristoval, born to Juan 

Francisco Antonio Moya (see below) was named after Juan Francisco 

Antonio’s “brother”.   Cristoval married on March 19, 1811 and died on 

September 30, 1813 leaving two small children.  We only have record of 

one of them, Maria Gertrudis. 
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Ninth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

9. Juan Francisco Antonio Moya.  

 

Juan Francisco Antonio was born sometime between 1762 to 1763 in 

Albuquerque or Carnuel, New Mexico.  Juan Francisco Antonio married 

Maria Manuela Candelaria (Garcia), the widow of Jose’ Anaya.  They 

were married in Albuquerque, New Mexico.  She was the daughter of 

Eusevia Candelaria. Maria Manuela was born in 1770 in Tome’.  She died 

in Tome’on May 25, 1839 when she was 69.  He died in Tome’ on November 

14, 1839 when he was 77. 

  

They had the following children: 

 

10.  i. Antonio was born in Tome’ in 1791 and died on October  

   26, 1843. 

 

ii. Jose Rafael was born in Tome’ on August 7, 1800. On  

  February 19, 1820, when Jose Rafael was 19, he first  

  married Maria Gertrudes Cedillo, daughter of Ysidro 

  Cedillo and Maria Encarnacion Barela, in Tome’. Maria 

  Gertrudes died on September 4, 1825 in Tome’. 

 

On December 2, 1827 when Jose Rafael was 27, he second 

married Maria Macaela Sanchez, in Tome’. 

 

iii. Maria Juana was married on September 5, 1816 to 

Gabriel Gallegos, son of Bartolo Gallegos and Maria 

Dolores Sais, in Tome’. 

 

iv. Cristoval married Maria Dolores Gurule, daughter of 

Andres Gurule and Pasquela Griego, in Tome’ on March 

19, 1811.  He died on September 30, 1813 in Tome’. 

  

v. Jose Manuel Antonio Moya.   
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Tenth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

10.  Antonio Moya.  

 

Antonio was born in 1791 in Tome’ and was murdered in San Miguel del 

Bado, New Mexico on October 26, 1843 when he was 52. 

 

On October 20, 1831, when Antonio was 40, he married Maria de la 

Trinidad Gurule, daughter of Miguel Gurule and Juana Maria Cleta 

(Molina) Gallegos, in Tome’.  She was born on June 6, 1811 in Los 

Enlames.  Maria de la Trinidad died in Los Enlames on July 11, 1851 

when she was 40. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

11.  i. Marcelino was born on June 1, 1833 and baptized on 

   June 4 in Tome’. He died in Tome’ on August 14,1910. 

 

  ii. Maria Quirina was born on June 4, 1835.  On July 28, 

1851 when she was 16, she married Estevan de Jesus, 

Maria Y Jose Zamora, son of Antonio Jose Zamora and 

Relles Benevides, in Tome’. Estevan was born on 

January 2, 1827 in Tome’.  Estevan de Jesus, Maria Y 

Jose died in Tome’ at 5 pm on October 21, 1903 when he 

was 76. Estevan was an alter boy at the Tome’ church 

for 70 years. Maria Quirina died April 10, 1920. 

 

  iii. Juan Maria Teofilo was born on January 6, 1838. 

 

  iv. Maria Estefania de Jesus was born on June 5, 1842 and 

died on March 7, 1895. 
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Eleventh Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

11. Marcelino Moya.  

 

Marcelino was born on June 1, 1833 in Tome’, NM. He worked as a 

farmer.  On January 7, 1857, when Marcelino was 23, he married Maria 

Feliciana Ballejos, daughter of Juan Julian Ballejos and Juliana 

Rafaela Baca, in Tome’. She was born on June 10, 1841 in Tome’. Maria 

Feliciana died in Tome’ December 25, 1907 when she was 66.  He died in 

Tome’ on August 14, 1910 when he was 77. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Jose Francisco was born on October 4, 1858. 

 

ii. Maria Antonia was born on September 2, 1860. 

 

iii. Maria Catarina was born on November 24, 1862.  On January  

7, 1880, Maria Catrina married Francisco Chaves, son of  

Francisco Chaves and Victoria Venavides in Tome’.  He was  

born about 1860 in Tome’ and died on December 7, 1928 and  

died on August 4, 1931.  Maria Catarina died on August 4,  

1931.  They had four children: Emiterio, Estanislao, 

Maximo, and Ana. 

 

iv. Francisco Antonio was born on January 17, 1865 and died on  

October 26, 1937 in Adelino. 

 

v. Maria Dolores was born on April 12, 1867.  She married  

Francisco Lopes on January 28, 1884 in Tome’. 

 

vi. Sisto was born on March 21, 1869 in Tome’.  On November 4,  

1989, when Sisto was 20, he first married Refugio Cedillo, 

daughter of Miguel Cedillo and Isidora Romero, in Tome’.   

She was born in May 1869. Sisto and Refugio had four   

children: Eligio, Margarita, Sinforosa, and Andrea. 

 

On January 17, 1907 Sisto married his second wife, Maria 

San Juan Romero, daughter of Miguel Antonio Romero and 

Maria de la luz Suzanna Chaves in Tome’.  She was born on 

January 31, 1890 and died on August 4, 1948 in Bernalillo.  

They had eleven children: Antonio, Abelicio, Maximiliano, 

Manuel, Eloy, Daniel, Dolores, Lucy, Maria, Marcelino, and 

Ponciano. 

 

Sisto worked as a farmer for the Castillo family in   

Bernallilo.  He died in Bernalillo on March 7, 1954.  The  

family story goes that at his death he left all his   

property to people who claimed to read into the future,  

leaving nothing to his family. 
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vii. Maria Rufina was born on November 9, 1871 in Tome’.  On  

November 19, 1888, when she was 17, she married Jose Lino  

Lucero, son of Jose Timoteo Lucero and Maria Vicenta Vaca,  

in Tome’. She was born on September 23, 1865. Jose Lino  

died on February 10, 1940 when he was 74. 

 

viii. Norberto was born on June 6, 1875 in Tome’.  On October  

5, 1896, when Norberto was 21, he married Dolores Chaves,  

daughter of Doroteo Chaves & Monica Chaves, in Tome’. 

 

ix. Ignacio was born on July 30, 1877 and died in April, 1879. 

 

x. Sinforiano was born on August 19, 1878 and died on August 

2, 1879. 

 

12. xi.    Eduardo was born on October 15, 1880 in Las Enlames and 

        died on October 25,1965. He first married Francisquita 

        Lucero (“MaMa Kika” on November 23, 1903 in Tome’.  Her 

        parents were Jose Jorge Lucero & Josefa (“MaMa Ita”) 

        Jaramillo.  Francisquita was baptized in August, 1887 in 

        Socorro and died on May 17,1952 in Adelino. 

 

        Eduardo second married Amada Sedillo in 1953 and moved to 

        her home in Tome’. 

 

xii.      Santos died as a child on March 22, 1884. 
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     Twelfth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

12. Eduardo Moya.  

 

Eduardo was born on October 15, 1880 in Los Enlames. He worked as a 

blacksmith, farmer, and rancher.  On November 23, 1903, when Eduardo 

was 23, he married Francisquita Lucero (“MaMa Kika”), daughter of Jose 

Jorge Lucero and Josefa (“MaMa Ita”) Jaramillo, in Tome’. She was born 

on August 21, 1887. Francisquita died in Adelino on May 17, 1952 when 

she was 64.  Eduardo died in Tome’ on October 25, 1965 when he was 85. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

13.  i. Antonio was born on December 18,1904 and died on July  

   1952. 

 

  ii. Francisco was born on 14 Mar 1906. 

 

iv. Jose De La Santa Cruz was born on August 19, 1907.  On 

August 22 1907 he was baptized by Paublo Jaramillo & 

Catalina Garcia.  On January 2, 1931 when Santa Cruz 

was 23, he married Maria Del Carmel Catalina (Tia 

Carmelita), daughter of Jose Maria de los Reyes Aragon 

& Leonides Orona, in Valencia. Tia Carmelita was born 

on November 25, 1910 in Tome’.  Santa Cruz died in 

Albuquerque on April 14, 1950, when he was 42. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

Guillermo died as a child on 21 Dec. 1933 in Tome’. 

 

Frank first married Tillie Asagura. They had three 

children: Carol, Mark, and Myra. Frank second married 

Gerri_______ 

 

Trinidad married Florence LeDoux. They had five 

children: David, Diana, Steve, Cindy, and Sharon. 

 

Lillie married Michael Martinez. They had seven 

children: Cathy, Michael, Carmen, Pauline, Chris, 

Bernadette and Juanita.  

 

  iv. Elfigo was born on July 22, 1908 in Tome’.  Elfigo 

    married Rufina Barela. He died in Albuquerque on 

November 19,1940 when he was 32. They had four          

children: Jose’ P., Elfigo, Sylvia, and Emma.   

 

  v. Francisco was born on 15 Nov, 1910 and died on March 

24, 1911 in Tome’. 

 

  vi. Liverato was born on December 12, 1912 in Tome’. 
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  Liverato married Maria Sanchez.  Liverato died on 

     April 28,1997 when he was 84. They had five children: 

  Elfigo, Ruth, Patsy, Darlene, and Reymundo.  

 

 

  vii. Maria Leonires was born on April 11, 1914 in Tome’. On 

January 9, 1933 when Maria Leonires was 18, she 

married Felipe Ballejos, son of Leandro Ballejos & 

Sofia Jaramillo, in Tome’. Felipe was born on 18 May 

1907 in Belen. . Maria Leonires died in Barstow, 

Calif. on April 9, 1998 when she was 83.  They had 

eight children: Benny, Sofie, Ernesto, Alberto, Lena, 

Eloisa, Pauline, and Maria Victoria. 

 

  viii. Adelicia was born on October 14, 1915 in Tome’.  

Adelicia first married Ambrosio Gurule who was born in 

1921 in Adelino. Ambrosio died in Adelino on February 

2, 1944 when he was 23. Adelicia died in Tome’ on 

April 28, 1998 when she was 82. 

 

Adelicia second married Gregorio Sedillo who was born 

in 1922. Gregorio died in Tome’ on February 6, 1982 

when he was 60. 

 

They had no children. 

 

  ix. Juanita was born on May 24, 1916 in Tome’. Juanita 

died on 24 Oct. 1919 in Tome’ at the age of 3. 

 

  x. Delfin was born on December 23, 1919 in Tome’.  He 

married Lilly Chaves.  They had three children (one 

died as a child), Delfin Jr and Martin. 

 

  xi. Eduardo was born on August 4, 1924 in Tome’.  On April 

4, 1950 when Eduardo was 25 he married Filomena Silva, 

daughter of Prospero Silva & Refugia Orona.  Filomena 

was born on October 4, 1929 in Belen.  Eduardo died in 

December, l981 in Barstow, Calif. They had six 

children: Maria Lourdes (Frances), Maria Margarita, 

Mary Ann, Evelyn Sylvia, Mary Alice and Theresa. 

 

  xii. Justiniano (Tullie) was born on July 3, 1925 in Tome’. 

He married Clorinda Salaz.  He died in Barstow, Calif. 

on September 2, 1986 when he was 61.  They had two 

children: Cyril and Richard. 
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Thirteenth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

13. Antonio L. Moya.  

 

Antonio was born on December 19, 1904 in Adelino.  His occupation was 

mechanic, farmer, welder, & bus driver. He graduated from Belen High 

School.  On December 26, 1927 when Antonio was 23, he married Emilia 

Aragon, daughter of Bruno Francisco Aragon & Blaza Estela Torres, in 

Tome’.  Emilia was born on December 13, 1911 in Tome’. Emilia died at 

home in Tome’ on October 6, 2005 when she was 93. Antonio died in 

Belen Hospital on July 13, 1952 when he was 47. He was buried on July 

16, 1952 in Tome’.  

 

They had the following children: 

i. Stella was born on March 29, 1930 in Tome’.  On July 

2, 1956, when Stella was 26, she married Dan de Baca, 

in Tome’. Dan was born on June 30, 1933.  They had 

four children: Diana, Danny, Ralph, and Renee. 

 

ii. Bertha Maria was born on October 5, 1931 in Tome’.  On 

April 15,1961 when Bertha Maria was 29, she married 

Jerome Barreras, in Tome’.  He was born on 18th of 

December.   

 

iii. Lucy was born on February 25, 1935 in Tome’.  Lucy was 

married to Phil Peralta, born on March 30, 1934. Lucy 

died in Tome’ on June 27, 2013 when she was 78. They 

had five children: Anthony, Mary Lee, Michael, Fred, 

and John. 

 

iv. Amarante Aurelio was born on June 16, 1941 in Tome’.  

On December 26, 1959 when Amarante Aurelio was 18, he 

married Margaret Otero, daughter of Fidel Otero & 

Beatrice MacBride, in Los Lunas. Margaret was born on 

October 27, 1940.   Amarante died in Albuquerque on 

December 11, 2009 when he was 68.  They had three 

children: Richard, Brian, and Monty. 

 

  v. Concepcion (Connie) was born on December 1, 1942 in 

   Tome’. On October 18, Concepcion (Connie) married 

   Lorenzo Baca, son of Herman Baca & Andrea Orona.  They 

   had three children: Lisa, Laura, and Angela. 

 

vi. Francisco Antonio (Tony) was born on September 19, 

1944 in Tome’. On July 17, 1971 when Francisco 

Antonio was 26, he married Lydia Chavez, daughter of 

Jose Chavez & Josefita Torres, in Peralta. Lydia was 

born on September 9, 1945 in Peralta. Divorced. 

 

vii. Gilbert Ralph was born on September 22, 1948 in Tome’.
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 Gertrudis Sanchez (de) spouse of 7 

Ramirez Rodriguez  

 Isabel child of 2 

Rivera  

 Magdalena (de) spouse of 4 

Rodriguez  

 Gero'nima child of 2 

 Juana spouse of 2 

Suarez  

 Leonor spouse of 2 

Toro  

 Maria (de) spouse of 3 
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First Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

1. Juan Lucero. 

 

He had one child: 

 

 2 i. Pedro. 
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Second Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

2. Pedro Lucero.   

 

It is not certain if this older Pedro was the father or cousin of 

Pedro Lucero de Godoy, who accompanied the older Pedro to New Mexico 

in 1598.  It is the younger Pedro Lucero de Godoy who is recognized as 

the first generation of the Lucero family in New Mexico. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

 3 i. Pedro. 

 

  ii. Diego. 

 

  iii. Francisco. 
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Third Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

3. Pedro Lucero de Godoy.  

 

Pedro Lucero de Godoy was born in Mexico City. Pedro first married 

Petronila de Zamora, daughter of Bartolome de Montoya & Maria de 

Zamora.  In 1628 he was married and living in Santa Fe.   

 

He escorted supply wagon trains between Santa Fe and Mexico with the 

military. 

 

In 1663 he stated he was Maese de Campo. (Rank equivalent to General 

Field Commander) and he was at that time Lieutenant Governor of the 

Kingdom of New Mexico.   

 

They had the following children: 

 

 4 i. Juan. (1624 - ) 

 

  ii. Catalina married Diego Romero. 

 

Pedro second married Francisca Gomez Robledo. 
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Fourth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

4. Juan Lucero de Godoy. 

 

Juan Lucero de Godoy was born in 1624 in NM.  Juan first married Luisa 

Romero. 

 

Juan second married Juana de Carbajal. Juana died in 1683 in San 

Lorenzo by El Paso, Texas. 

 

They had one child: 

 

 5 i. Nicolas. (1646-1727) 

 

Juan third married Isabel de Salazar. 
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Fifth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

5. Nicolas Lucero de Godoy.  

 

Nicolas was born in 1646 west of Santa Fe at Pueblo Quemado.  Nicolas 

married Maria Montoya, daughter of Sebastian de Herrera Corrales & 

Juana de Aragon. Maria died on 12 Jan 1740.  In 1680 he was married 

and living in Santa Fe with two small children.  In 1680 he and his 

family escaped the Indian Uprising and headed south to San Lorenzo or 

El Paso.  Nicolas died in Alburquerque on 27 Apr 1727 when he was 81. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

 6 i. Miguel died 15 June, 1709 in Zuni.  

 

  ii. Francisca married Juan Antonio Apodaca on 8 Nov 1716 

in Albuquerque. 

 

  iii. Manuela married Francisco Gutierrez. 

 

  iv. Luis married Maria Romero in 1719 at Isleta. 

 

  v. Juan was born in 1673 in Bernalillo.  Juan married 

Maria Lopez Olguin. 

 

  vi. Pedro. 
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Sixth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

6. Capitan Miguel Lucero de Godoy.  

 

In 1700 Miguel married Angela Teresa Vallejos, daughter of Manuel 

Vallejos Gonzales & Maria Lopes de Artiaga, in Bernalillo. Angela was 

born in 1686 in Mexico City. Miguel was wounded at El Morro in a 

battle on June l5, 1709 with Jemez Indians He was taken to Zuni where 

he died that same day.  He was buried in the Mission on the Epistle 

side.    

 

They had the following children: 

 

 7 i. Don Miguel. (1709-1766) 

 

  ii. Manuel. 

 

  iii. Maria was born on 1 Dec 1708 in Albuquerque. 
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Seventh Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

7. Don Miguel Lucero II.  

 

Don Miguel was born on 6 Jan 1709 in Albuquerque, NM.  He was buried 

on 25 Jan 1766 in Fuenclara (Tome’) Church.  In 1729 when Don Miguel 

was 19, he married Rosa Baca, daughter of Josefa Baca.  Don Miguel 

died in Albuquerque on 25 Jan 1766 when he was 57. 

 

In 1756, when Don Miguel was 46, he second married Antonia Duran Y 

Chavez, daughter of Francisco Duran Y Chavez & Juana Baca, in Tome’. 

 

They had the following children: 

 8 i. Jose was born about 1760 in Fuenclara (Tome’). 

 

  ii. Maria de la Luz. 

 

  iii. Jose Antonio. 

 

  iv. Maria Barbara. 

 

  v. Maria Antonio. 

 

  vi. Tomas. 

 

  vii. Maria Gurtrudes. 
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Eighth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

8. Jose Lucero.  

 

Jose was born about 1760 in Fuenclara (Tome’).  Jose married Gertrudes 

Perea. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Juan Miguel Sevastian was born on 20 Jan 1795 in Tome’. 

 

ii. Maria Barbara Faustina was born on 19 Feb 1809 in Tome’ 

iii. Maria Antonia was born on 24 Jun 1810 in Tome’. 

 

9. iv.   Jose Maria was born 20 Feb 1812 in Los Enlames.  He died 8 

       Mar 1893 in Los Enlames. 

 

v. Jose Rafael Qurino was born on 6 Jun 1814 in Tome’. 

 

vi. Maria Soledad Candelaria was born on 2 Feb 1819 in Tome’. 
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Ninth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

9. Jose Maria Lucero.  

 

Jose Maria was born on 20 Feb 1812 in Los Enlames. On 9 Nov 1834 when 

Jose Maria was 22, he first married Maria Luiza Romero, daughter of 

Manuel Romero & Maria Rafela Baca, in Tome’. Maria Luiza was born on 

20 Jun 1819 in Tome’. Maria Luiza died before 1860.  Jose Maria died 

in Los Enlames on 8 Mar 1893 when he was 81. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Jose Timoteo was born on 21 Jul 1836 in Tome’.  On 27 

Sep 1858 when Jose Timoteo was 22, he married Maria 

Vicenta Vaca, daughter of Blas Vaca & Maria Nepomucena 

Varela, in Tome’. 

 

  ii. Maria Encarnacion was born on 23 Mar 1839 in Tome’ 

 

  iii. Jesus Maria was born on 1 Feb 1841 in Tome’. 

 

  iv. Jose Francisco was born on 31 May 1843 in Tome’. 

On 9 Oct 1866, Jose Lucero, hijo de Jose Maria Lucero, 

a los 9 dias del mes de Oct murio por mano de los 

Indios. Fue enterrado quince despus no edad. 

  

  v. Manuel was born on 22 Jan 1846 in Tome’. 

 

 10 vi. Jose Jorge (1851-1933). 

 

  vii. Maria Anastacia was born on 2 May 1853 in Tome’. 

 

  viii. Venseslado was born on 21 Nov 1856 in Tome’. 

 

  ix. Maria Ysabel was born on 20 Feb 1858 in Tome’. 

 

  x. Manuela. 

 

On 26 Sep 1859 when Jose Maria was 47, he second married Dolores 

Samora, daughter of Antonio & Reyes Venabides, in Tome’. 
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Tenth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

10. Jose Jorge Lucero.  

 

Jose Jorge was born on 21 Apr 1851 in Los Enlames.  He was a rancher, 

buffalo hunter, and a devout Catholic.  On 2 Sep 1874 when Jose Jorge 

was 23, he married Eugenia Varela, in Tome’.  Jose Jorge died in Los 

Enlames on 13 Dec 1933 when he was 82. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

  i. Gertrudes was born on 27 Jun 1875 in Tome’. 

 

  ii. Maria Dolores. 

 

  iii. Cecilio was born on 22 Mar 1878 in Tome’. 

 

  iv. Venceslao was born on 28 Mar 1880 in Tome’. 

 

On 16 Feb 1885 when Jose Jorge was 33, he second married Josefa 

(“Josefita” or “MaMa Ita”) Jaramillo, daughter of Paublo Jaramillo & 

Maria Ramona Ballejos, in Tome’.  Jose Jorge Lucero & Josefita 

Jaramillo lived in Los Enlames (Adelino) just west of Hiway 47 and 

about 2 miles south of Tome’ Church.  Josefa was born on 17 Mar 1867 

in Tome’.  She died in Tome’ on 7 Sep 1940 when she was 73. 

 

After their daughter, Francisquita, married Grand-pa Lalo, they bought 

the Mirabal Ranch in La Ladera, land now owned by Dan DeBaca & Stella 

Moya (east of the big cottonwood tree) so they could be close to their 

daughter.  The 1910 census lists George Lucero 51, Josefita 41, Romona 

16, and son in law, Teofilo Chavez, 21, living in the same household. 

 

They had the following children: 

i. Doroteo was born on 6 Feb 1886 in Tome’. Doroteo died 

in Tome’ on 5 Dec 1893 when he was 7. 

 

 11 ii. Francisquita. (August 21,1887 – May 17,1952) 

 

  iii. Venceslao was born on 25 Mar 1890. 

 

  iv. Ramona (“La Mana”) was born on 13 Apr 1894 in Adelino. 

Ramona married Teofilo Chaves, son of Doroteo Chaves & 

Monica Chaves.  Ramona died in Belen on 16 Mar 1974 

when she was 79.   

 

  v. Santa Cruz was born in Apr 1906 in Tome’.  Santa Cruz 

died 28 Jun 1906 in Tome’. 

 

  vi. Antonio died on 10 Apr 1898 in Tome’. 

 

  vii. Jose died on 9 Oct 1866 in Tome’. 
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     Eleventh Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

11. Francisquita (“MaMa Kika”) Lucero. 

 

Francisquita was born on 21 Aug 1887. It is not know why, but she was 

baptized 25 Aug. 1887, in Socorro.  Padrinos were Silverio Baca and 

Genoveva Sedillo.  On 23 Nov 1903 when Francisquita was 16, she 

married Eduardo Moya, son of Marcelino Moya & Maria Feliciana 

Ballejos, in Tome’. Eduardo was born on 15 Oct 1880 in Los Enlames.  

He died in Tome’ on 25 Oct 1965 when he was 85.  Francisquita died in 

Adelino on 17 May 1952 when she was 64. 

 

After Francisquita “MaMa Kika” married Eduardo, her parents, Jorge & 

Josefita bought the Mirabal Ranch in La Ladera (land now owned by Dan 

DeBaca & Stella Moya) east of the big cottonwood tree so they could be 

close to their daughter.  

  

In the 1910 census it lists Jose Jorge Lucero 51, Josefita 41, Romona 

16, and son in law, Teofilo Chavez, 21, living in the same household. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

 12 i. Antonio L. (1904-1952) 

 

ii. Francisco was born on 14 Mar 1906 and baptized on the 

15th in Tome’. 

 

iii. Jose De La Santa Cruz was born on August 19, 1907.  On 

August 22 1907 he was baptized by Paublo Jaramillo & 

Catalina Garcia.  On January 2, 1931 when Santa Cruz 

was 23, he married Maria Del Carmel Catalina (Tia 

Carmelita), daughter of Jose Maria de los Reyes Aragon 

& Leonides Orona, in Valencia. Tia Carmelita was born 

on November 25, 1910 in Tome’.  Santa Cruz died in 

Albuquerque on April 14, 1950, when he was 42. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

Guillermo died as a child on 21 Dec. 1933 in Tome’. 

 

Frank first married Tillie Asagura. They had three 

children: Carol, Mark, and Myra. Frank second married 

Gerri_______ 

 

Trinidad married Florence LeDoux. They had five 

children: David, Diana, Steve, Cindy, and Sharon. 

 

Lillie married Michael Martinez. They had seven 

children: Cathy, Michael, Carmen, Pauline, Chris, 

Bernadette and Juanita.  
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iv. Elfigo was born on 22 Jul 1908 in Tome’.  Elfigo 

married Rufina Barela.  Elfigo died in Albuquerque on 

19 Nov 1940 when he was 32.They had four children: 

Jose’ P, Elfigo, Sylvia, and Emma. 

 

v. Francisco was born 18 Nov 1910 in Tome’ and died on 24 

Mar 1911.   

 

  vi. Liverato was born on 12 Dec 1912 in Tome’. Liverato 

married Maria Sanchez. Liverato died on 28 Apr 1997 

when he was 84.  They had five children: Elfigo, Ruth, 

Patsy, Darlene, and Raymundo. 

 

  vii. Maria Leonires was born on 11 Apr 1914 in Tome’. On 9 

Jan 1933 when Maria Leonires was 18, she married 

Felipe Ballejos, son of Leandro Ballejos & Sofia 

Jaramillo, in Tome’. Felipe was born on 18 May 1907 in 

Belen. Maria Leonires died in Barstow, Calif. on 9 Apr 

1998 when she was 83. They had eight children: Benny, 

Sofie, Ernesto, Alberto, Lina, Eloisa, Pauline, and 

Maria Victoria. 

 

  viii. Adelicia was born on 14 Oct 1915 in Tome’. Adelicia 

first married Ambrosio Gurule. Ambrosio was born in 

1921 in Adelino and died in Adelino on 2 Feb 1944 when 

he was 23.  Adelicia died in Tome’ on 28 Apr 1998 when 

she was 82. 

 

Adelicia second married Gregorio Sedillo, who was born 

in 1922. Gregorio died in Tome’ on 6 Feb 1982 when he 

was 60. 

 

i. Juanita was born on 24 May 1916 in Tome’. Juanita died 

in Tome’ on 24 Oct 1919 when she was 3. 

 

ii. Delfin was born on 23 Dec 1919 in Tome’.  Delfin 

married Lilly Chaves.  They had three children: one 

died as a child, Delfin Jr., and Martin. 

 

iii. Eduardo was born on 4 Aug 1924 in Tome’. On 4 Apr 1950 

when Eduardo was 25, he married Filomena Silva, 

daughter of Prospero Silva & Refugia Orona. Filomena 

was born on 4 Oct 1929 in Belen. Eduardo died in Dec 

l981 in Barstow, Calif.  They had six children: Maria 

Lourdes, Marie Margarita, Mary Ann, Evelyn Sylvia, 

Mary Alice, and Theresa. 

 

iv. Justiniano (“Tullie”) was born on 3 Jul 1925 in Tome’.    

He married Clorinda Salaz.  Tullie died in Barstow, 

Calif. on 2 Sep 1986 when he was 61.  They had two 

children: Cyril; Richard. 
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Twelfth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

12. Antonio L. Moya.  

 

Antonio was born on December 19, 1904 in Adelino.  On 23 Dec 1904 he 

was baptized by Jorge & Josefita Lucero, his maternal grandparents. He 

died in the Belen Hospital on July 13, 1952 when he was 47. He was 

buried on July 16, 1952 in Tome’.  He was a mechanic, farmer, welder, 

& bus driver. He graduated from Belen High School. On December 26, 

1927 when Antonio was 23, he married Emilia Aragon, daughter of Bruno 

Francisco Aragon & Blaza Estela Torres, in Tome’.  Emilia was born on 

December 13, 1911 in Tome’. Emilia died at home in Tome’ on October 6, 

2005 when she was 93. 

 

They had the following children: 

v. Stella was born on March 29, 1930 in Tome’.  On July 

2, 1956, when Stella was 26, she married Dan de Baca, 

in Tome’. Dan was born on June 30, 1933.  They had 

four children: Diana, Danny, Ralph, and Renee. 

 

vi. Bertha Maria was born on October 5, 1931 in Tome’.  On 

April 15, 1961 when Bertha Maria was 29, she married 

Jerome Barreras, in Tome’. He was born on 18th of 

December.   

 

vii. Lucy was born on February 25, 1935 in Tome’. Lucy died 

in Tome’ on June 27, 2013 when she was 78. Lucy was 

married to Phil Peralta, born on March 30, 1934. They 

had five children: Anthony, Mary Lee, Michael, Fred, 

and John. 

 

viii. Amarante Aurelio was born on June 16, 1941 in Tome’. 

He died in Albuquerque on December 11, 2009 when he 

was 68.  On December 26, 1959 when Amarante Aurelio 

was 18, he married Margaret Otero, daughter of Fidel 

Otero & Beatrice MacBride, in Los Lunas. Margaret was 

born on October 27, 1940.  They had three children: 

Richard, Brian, and Monty. 

 

  v. Concepcion (Connie) was born on December 1, 1942 in 

Tome’.  On October 18, Concepcion (Connie) married 

Lorenzo Baca, son of Herman Baca & Andrea Orona.  They 

had three children: Lisa, Laura, and Angela. 

 

  vi. Francisco Antonio was born on September 19, 1944 in 

Tome’, On July 17, 1971 when Francisco Antonio was 26, 

he married Lydia Chavez, daughter of Jose Chavez & 

Josefita  Torres, in Peralta. Lydia was born on 

September 9, 1945 in Peralta. Divorced. 

 

  vii. Gilbert Ralph was born on September 22, 1948 in Tome’. 
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Index 

 

Aragon  

 Emilia spouse of 12 

Baca  

 Rosa spouse of 7 

Carbajal 2nd wife  

 Juana (de) spouse of 4 

Duran Y Chavez  

 Antonia spouse of 7 

Jaramillo  

 Josefa (ma ita) spouse of 10 

Lucero  

 Antonio child of 10 

 Cecilio child of 10 

 Diego child of 2 

 Doroteo child of 10 

 Francisco child of 2 

 Gertrudes child of 10 

 Jesus Maria child of 9 

 Jose 8 

 Jose child of 10 

 Jose Francisco child of 9 

 Jose Jorge 10 

 Jose Maria 9 

 Jose Rafael Qurino child of 8 

 Jose Timoteo child of 9 

 Juan 1 

 Juan Miguel Sevastian child of 8 

 Manuel child of 9 

 Manuela child of 9 

 Maria Anastacia child of 9 

 Maria Antonia child of 8 

 Maria Barbara Faustina child of 8 

 Maria Dolores child of 10 

 Maria Encarnacion child of 9 

 Maria Soledad Candelaria child of 8 

 Maria Ysabel child of 9 

 Pedro 2 

 Ramona  (la Mana) child of 10 

 Santa Cruz child of 10 

 Tomas child of 7 

 Venceslao child of 10 

 Venceslao child of 10 

 Venseslado child of 9 

Lucero   ma kika  

 Francisquita 11 

Lucero de Godoy  

 Catalina child of 3 

 Francisca child of 5 

 Juan 4 
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 Juan child of 5 

 Luis child of 5 

 Manuel child of 6 

 Manuela child of 5 

 Maria child of 6 

 Capitan Miguel 6 

 Nicolas 5 

 Pedro 3 

 Pedro child of 5 

Lucero II  

 Don Miguel 7 

 Jose Antonio child of 7 

 Maria Antonio child of 7 

 Maria Barbara child of 7 

 Maria de la luz child of 7 

 Maria Gurtrudes child of 7 

Montoya  

 Maria spouse of 5 

Moya  

 Adelicia child of 11 

 Amarante Aurelio child of 12 

 Antonio L 12 

 Bertha Maria child of 12 

 Concepcion (Connie) child of 12 

 Delfin child of 11 

 Eduardo spouse of 11 

 Elfigo child of 11 

 Francisco child of 11 

 Francisco child of 11 

 Francisco Antonio child of 12 

 Gilbert Ralph child of 12 

 Juanita child of 11 

 Justiniano (Tullie) child of 11 

 Liverato child of 11 

 Lucy child of 12 

 Maria Leonires child of 11 

 Santa Cruz child of 11 

 Stella child of 12 

Moya Jr. Lalo  

 Eduardo child of 11 

Perea  

 Gertrudes spouse of 8 

Robledo  

 Francisca Gomez spouse of 3 

Romero  

 Luisa spouse of 4 

 Maria Luiza spouse of 9 

Salazar 3rd wife  

 Isabel (de) spouse of 4 

Samora  

 Dolores spouse of 9 

Vallejos  
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 Angela Teresa spouse of 6 

Varela  

 Eugenia spouse of 10 

Zamora  

 Petronila (de) spouse of 3 
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First Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

1. Cristobal Torres ll. 

 

Cristobal married Angela de Leyva. 

 

They had one child: 

 

 2 i. Diego. 
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Second Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

2. Diego de Torres. 

 

Diego married Maria Martin de Salazar. 

 

They had one child: 

 

 3 i. Tadeo ( - 1758.) 

 



TORRES GENEALOGY 

Page 40 

 

Third Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

3. Tadeo Torres.  

 

Tadeod first married Gurtrudes Barela.  Tadeo died on 28 Nov 1758 in 

Tome’.   

 

They had one child: 

 

 4 i. Miguel (-1830). 

 

On 27 Apr 1744 Tadeo second married Micaela Varela.  Both had been 

married previously.   
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Fourth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

4. Miguel Torres.  

 

Miguel died on 8 Feb 1830 in Tome’, NM.  Miguel married Francisca 

Cedillo, daughter of Julian Cedillo & Maria Ballejos. Francisca died 

on 16 Dec 1849 in Tome’. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

  i. Maria Tomasa de Jesus was born on 6 Mar 1812 in Tome’. 

 

  ii. Ana Maria Lucia was born on 26 Sep 1814 in Tome’. 

 

  iii. Maria Gregoria was born on 17 Mar 1817 in Tome’. 

 

  iv. Jose Faustin was born on 15 Feb 1820 in Tome’. Jose 

Faustin died in 1851, he was 30.  On 12 Apr 1841 when 

Jose Faustin was 21, he married Maria de la Soledad 

Eugenia Baca, daughter of Juan Antonio Baca & Maria 

Juliana Jaramillo, in Tome’. Maria de la Soledad 

Eugenia was born on 19 Mar 1829 in Tome’. 

 

  v. Maria Barbara was born on 13 May 1822 in Tome’. Maria 

   Barbara died on 5 Jun 1839 when she was 17. 

 

 5 vi. Juan Jose. (1808 - ) 

 

  vii. Maria Rita was born about 1800. Maria Rita died before 

1864. On 19 Apr 1826 she married Roman Jaramillo, son 

of Jose Maria Jaramillo & Josefa Gallegos, in Tome’. 
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Fifth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

5. Juan Jose Torres.  

 

Juan Jose was born about 1808 in Tome’, NM.  On 30 March 1828 when 

Juan Jose was 20, he married Maria Manuela Gertrudis Otero, daughter 

of Francisco Antonio Otero & Helena Aragon, in Tome’.  Maria Manuela 

Gertrudis was born on 5 Mar 1811 in Tome’. Maria Manuela Gertrudis 

died on 23 Jan 1840 when she was 28. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

 6 i. Juan Jose. (1828-188) 

 

  ii. Maria Tomasa Ramona was born on 7 Mar 1833 in Tome’. 

                She married Jose Telesfor Sedillo. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



TORRES GENEALOGY 

Page 43 

Sixth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

6. Juan Jose Torres.  

 

Juan Jose was born on 25 Nov 1828 in Tome’, NM. On 4 Nov 1850 when 

Juan Jose was 21, he married Maria del Pilar Romero, daughter of 

Bartolo Romero & Maria Dolores Samora, in Tome’. Maria del Pilar was 

born on 12 Oct 1833 in Tome’ and baptized by Marcos Baca & Maria de 

Jesus Ballejos.. Maria del Pilar died in Tome’ on 6 May 1881, she was 

47. Juan Jose died in Tome’, on 8 Jul 1881 when he was 52.  

 

They had the following children: 

 

  i. Antonio Jose was born on 3 Feb 1858 in Tome’. 

 

  ii. Agapita was born on 24 Mar 1860 in Tome’. Agapita died 

   in Tome’ on 19 Jul 1925, she was 65.  Agapita married 

Andres Ralliere, the adopted son of El Padre Ralliere. 

Andres was born about 1860 and died in Tome’ on 30 Aug 

1903 when he was 43. 

 

  iii. Maximo was born on 9 May 1862. 

 

 7 iv. Jose Manuel Martiniano. (1865-1926). 

 

  v. Julian was born on 17 Feb 1870 in Tome’.  On 4 Feb 

1892 when Julian was 21, he married Ramona Zamora, 

daughter of Estevan de Jesus, Maria y Jose Zamora & 

Maria Quirina Moya, the sister of Marcelino Moya, in 

Tome’. 

 

  vi. Gurtrudes was born on 5 Nov 1872 in Tome’ and died on 

23 Sep 1873. 

 

  vii. Manuela was born on 2 Aug 1874 in Tome’. Manuela died 

                in Tome’ on 29 May 1936 when she was 61.  On 29 Jan 

1895, when Manuela was 20, she married Abel Nabor 

Zamora, son of Estevan de Jesus, Maria y Jose Zamora & 

Maria Quirina Moya, in Tome’.  Abel Nabor was born on 

15 Mar 1861 in Tome’. Abel Nabor died in Tome’ on 25 

May 1944 when he was 83. 

 

  viii. Maria Amanda was born on 19 Sep 1877 in Tome’. Maria 

Amanda died in Tome’ on 18 Jul 1928 when she was 50.  

On 26 Nov 1898 when Maria Amanda was 21, she married 

Julian Zamora, son of Estevan de Jesus, Maria y Jose 

Zamora & Maria Quirina Moya, in Tome’.  He was born on 

8 Apr 1873 in Tome’. 

 

(NOTE re: Julian, Manuela, and Maria above.  A brother 

and two sisters married a sister and two brothers.) 
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  ix. Maria de Jesus married Juan de Jesus Gomez, son of 

   Juan Gomez & Olaya Cobos on 4 Sep 1871, in Tome’. 

 

  x. Ana Dolores died on 7 May 1869 in Tome’. 
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Seventh Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

7. Jose Manuel Martiniano Torres.  

 

Jose Manuel Martiniano was born on 2 Jan 1865 in Tome’, NM. Jose 

Manuel Martiniano died in Tome’ on 12 Apr 1926, he was 61.  On 6 Nov 

1882 when Jose Manuel Martiniano was 17, he married Vitoriana de los 

Dolores Romero, daughter of Antonio Romolo Romero & Ana Maria Otero, 

in Tome’. Vitoriana de los Dolores was born on 7 Dec 1863 in Tome’. 

Vitoriana de los Dolores died in Tome’ on 30 Nov 1944 when she was 80.   

 

Maria del Pilar Romero and Antonio Romolo Romero were sister and 

brother.  Jose Manuel Martiniano Torres (son of Maria del Pilar) who 

married Vitoriana de los Dolores (daughter of Antonio Romolo) were 

first cousins. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

  i. Juan was born on 5 Mar 1884 in Tome’. Juan died in 

Tome’ on 10 Nov 1930, he was 46.  On 10 Jan 1910 when 

Juan was 25, he married Maria Salazar, daughter of 

Antonio Salazar & Nicolasa Lujan in Tome’. 

 

  ii. Juan Andres was born on 2 Aug 1885 in Tome’. 

 

  iii. Ana Maria was born about 1888. On 23 Nov 1903 she 

married Rafael Aragon y Otero, son of Crisologo Aragon 

& Francisquita Otero, in Tome’.  Rafael was born on 22 

                Apr 1881 in Tome’. Ana Maria died on 10 May 1955. 

 

  iv. Pablo was born on 1 Jun 1891 in Tome’. Pablo died in 

                 Tome’ on 11 Feb 1913 when he was 21. 

 

 8 v. Blaza Estela. (1893-1920) 

 

  vi. Lucinda was born about 1896 in Tome’.  On 14 Apr 1913 

when Lucinda was 17, she married Rafael Aragon, son of 

                Felix Aragon & Josefa Cedillo, in Tome’. Lucinda died 

                in Tome’ on 25 Jun 1938 when she was 42.   

 

  vii. Francisquita was born about 1898 in Tome’. On 15 Sep 

1913 she married David Olguin, son of Alejandro Olguin 

& Eutimia Torres, in Tome’. Francisquita died in Tome’ 

   on 19 Feb 1941.  

 

  viii. Perfecto. 

 

  ix. Amalia married Manuel Alarid in Tome’ on 24 Nov 1924. 
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Eighth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

8. Blaza Estela Torres.  

 

Blaza Estela was born on 6 Oct 1893 in Tome’, NM.  On 14 Nov 1910 when 

Blaza Estela was 17, she married Bruno Francisco Aragon, son of Jose 

Maria de los Reyes Aragon & Emilia Aragon, in Tome’.  Bruno Francisco 

was born on 6 Oct 1889 in Valencia. Bruno Francisco died in Belen 

Hospital on 6 Jan 1960 when he was 70.  Blaza Estela died in El Cerro 

on 14 Sep 1920 when she was 26.  

 

When Grandma Estela died, Mom was 8, Elena was 6, and Tille was 3.  

They went to live with their grandparents, Jose Manuel Martiniano 

Torres and Victoriana de los Dolores Romero. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

 9 i. Emilia. (1911-2005) 

 

  ii. Elena was born in 1914 in El Cerro.  On 20 Apr 1936 

when Elena was 22, she married Celedon Chaves, son of 

Teofilo Chaves & Ramona (“La Mana”) Lucero, in Tome’.  

Celedon was born on 23 Sep 1915 in Tome’. Celedon died 

in Belen on 9 Feb 1971 when he was 55. Elena died in 

El Cerro in 1977 when she was 63.  

 

  iii. Cleotilde was born on 4 Mar 1916 in El Cerro. On 15 

Jan 1944 when Cleotilde was 27, she married George 

Baca, son of Liberato Baca & Biviana Marquez, in 

Tome’. George was born on 18 May 1916 in Gallup. 

Cleotilde died in the Belen Hospital on 17 Apr 1969 

when she was 53.  
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Ninth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

9. Emilia Aragon.  

 

Emilia was born on December 13, 1911 in Tome’, NM. She was a homemaker 

and a devout Catholic. Emilia graduated from the 8th grade. She was the 

daughter of Bruno Francisco Aragon & Blaza Estela Torres. On December 

26, 1927 when Emilia was 16, she married Antonio Moya, who was born on 

December 19, 1904 in Adelino. He was a mechanic, farmer, welder, & bus 

driver. He graduated from Belen High School. He died in the Belen 

Hospital on July 13, 1952 when he was 47. He was buried on July 16, 

1952 in Tome’. Emilia died at home in Tome’ on October 6, 2005 when 

she was 93.  

 

They had the following children: 

i. Stella was born on March 29, 1930 in Tome’.  On July 

2, 1956, when Stella was 26, she married Dan de Baca, 

in Tome’. Dan was born on June 30, 1933.  They had 

four children: Diana, Danny, Ralph, and Renee. 

 

ii. Bertha Maria was born on October 5, 1931 in Tome’.  On 

April 15,1961 when Bertha Maria was 29, she married 

Jerome Barreras, in Tome’. Jerome was born on the 18th 

of December.   

 

iii. Lucy was born on February 25, 1935 in Tome’. Lucy died 

in Tome’ on June 27, 2013 when she was 78. Lucy was 

married to Phil Peralta, born on March 30, 1934. They 

had five children: Anthony, Mary Lee, Michael, Fred, 

and John. 

 

iv. Amarante Aurelio was born on June 16, 1941 in Tome’.  

On December 26, 1959 when Amarante Aurelio was 18, he 

married Margaret Otero, daughter of Fidel Otero & 

Beatrice MacBride, in Los Lunas. Margaret was born on 

October 27, 1940.  Amarante died in Albuquerque on 

December 11, 2009 when he was 68. They had three 

children: Richard, Brian, and Monty. 

 

  v. Concepcion (Connie) was born on December 1, 1942 in 

Tome’. On October 18, Concepcion (Connie) married 

Lorenzo Baca, son of Herman Baca & Andrea Orona.  They 

had three children: Lisa, Laura, and Angela. 

 

i. Francisco Antonio (Tony) was born on September 19, 

1944 in Tome’.  On July 17, 1971 when Francisco 

Antonio was 26, he married Lydia Chavez, daughter of 

Jose Chavez & Josefita Torres, in Peralta. Lydia was 

born on September 9, 1945 in Peralta. Divorced. 

 

ii. Gilbert Ralph was born on September 22, 1948 in Tome’. 
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Index 

 

Aragon  

 Bruno Francisco spouse of 8 

 Cleotilde child of 8 

 Elena child of 8 

 Emilia 9 

Barela  

 Gurtrudes spouse of 3 

Cedillo  

 Francisca spouse of 4 

Leyva  

 Angela (de) spouse of 1 

Martin de Salazar  

 Maria spouse of 2 

Moya  

 Amarante Aurelio child of 9 

 Antonio L spouse of 9 

 Bertha Maria child of 9 

 Concepcion (Connie) child of 9 

 Francisco Antonio child of 9 

 Gilbert Ralph child of 9 

 Lucy child of 9 

 Stella child of 9 

Otero  

 Maria Manuela Gertrudis spouse of 5 

Romero  

 Maria del Pilar spouse of 6 

 Vitoriana de los Dolores spouse of 7 

Torres  

 Agapita child of 6 

 Amalia child of 7 

 Ana Dolores child of 6 

 Ana Maria child of 7 

 Ana Maria Lucia child of 4 

 Antonio Jose child of 6 

 Blaza Estela 8 

 Diego de 2 

 Francisquita child of 7 

 Gurtrudes child of 6 

 Jose Faustin child of 4 

 Jose Manuel Martiniano 7 

 Juan child of 7 

 Juan Andres child of 7 

 Juan Jose 5 

 Juan Jose 6 

 Julian child of 6 

 Lucinda child of 7 

 Manuela child of 6 

 Maria Amanda child of 6 

 Maria Barbara child of 4 
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 Maria de Jesus child of 6 

 Maria Gregoria child of 4 

 Maria Rita child of 4 

 Maria Tomasa de Jesus child of 4 

 Maria Tomasa Ramona child of 5 

 Maximo child of 6 

 Miguel 4 

 Pablo child of 7 

 Perfecto child of 7 

 Tadeo 3 

Torres ll  

 Cristobal 1 

Varela  

 Micaela spouse of 3 
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First Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

1. Augustin Geronimo de Aragon. 

 

Augustin Geronimo married Francisca de Quintana. 

 

They had one child: 

 

 2 i. Juan de Balcazar. 
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Second Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

2. Juan de Balcazar Aragon.  

 

Juan de Balcazar was born in Mexico City.  On 24 Nov 1647 Juan de 

Balcazar married Mensia de las Rueles Galindo, daughter of Juan 

Galindo & Juana De Zuniga Salquero, in Mexico City. Mensia was also 

born in Mexico City. 

 

They had one child: 

 

 3 i. Ignacio was baptized on 15 Aug 1657.
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Third Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

3. Ignacio de Aragon.  

 

Ignacio was baptized on 15 Aug 1657 in Mexico City.  On 9 Jun 1680 

when Ignacio was 22, he first married Sebastiana Ortiz, daughter of 

Nicolas Ortiz & Catalina de Castro, in Mexico City. Sebastiana was 

baptized on 20 Jan 1662 in Mexico City. Sebastiana died in Bernalillo 

some time before 1708. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

  i. Maria Gertrudis was born in 1685 in Mexico City. On 12 

Jun 1706 when Maria Gertrudis was 21, she married 

Antonio Baca. 

 

  ii. Antonia was born in 1690 in Mexico City. 

 

 4 iii. Nicolas. (1701-1754) 

 

  iv. Jose Francisco was born in 1693 in Santa Cruz. 

 

  v. Jose Timoteo was born in 1693 in Bernalillo. 

 

  vi. Joseph was born in 1695 in Bernalillo. 

 

 

On 25 Apr 1708, when Ignacio was 50, he second married Luisa Baca, 

daughter of Cristobal Baca & Dona Ana Morena de Lara, in Bernalillo. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Salvador Manuel was born on 21 Apr 1709. Salvador 

Manuel died in 1729 when he was 19. 

 

 ii. Andres was born in 1709 in Bernalillo.  In 1735, when 

Andres was 26, he married Elena Duran y Chavez. 
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Fourth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

4. Nicolas de Aragon.  

 

Nicolas was born in 1701 in Santa Fe.  In 1729 when Nicolas was 28, he 

married Margarita Gallego, daughter of Antonio Gallegos II & Rosa 

Montolla. Margarita was born on 10 Feb 1706 in Bernalillo. Nicolas 

died in Tome’ on 30 Mar 1754 when he was 53.   

 

They had the following children: 

 

 5. i. Don Juan Manuel Ambrosio. (1731 - before 1834) 

 

  ii. Jose Mariano was born in 1733 in Tome’.  On 5 May 

1789, when Mariano was 56, he married Manuela Antonia 

Zanches in Isleta. 

 

  iii. Feliciana was born in 1743. Feliciana married Ygnacio 

Romero. 

 

  iv. Juana Victoria was born in 1743. Juana Victoria died 

in Tome’ on 7 Jul 1818 when she was 75.  Juana 

Victoria married Lucas Pera. 

 

  v. Juan Francisco was born in 1747 in Bernalillo.  Juan 

Francisco married Maria Ignacia Baca, daughter of 

Bartolome Baca. 

 

  vi. Jose Francisco was born in 1748 in Bernalillo. In 

1775, when Jose Francisco was 27, he married Maria 

Alfonza Vallejo. Jose Francisco died in Valencia on 22 

Mar 1813 when he was 65. 

 

  vii. Francisco Xavier was born in 1749 in Tome’.  In 1769 

when Francisco Xavier was 20, he married Maria Lugarda 

Baca, daughter of Manuel Baca & Margarita Tafoya. 

 

  viii. Francisco Joseph was born on 9 Dec 1751 in Tome’. In 

1775, when Francisco was 23, he married Maria Alfonsa 

Vallejo. Francisco Joseph died in 1813 when he was 61. 

 

  ix. Maria Barbara was born in 1730. In 1746, when Maria 

Barbara was 16, she married Joseph de Salas. Joseph 

died in 1784. Maria Barbara died in Isleta some time 

before 1782. 
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Fifth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

5. Don Juan Manuel Ambrosio Aragon.  

 

Juan Manuel Ambrosio was born in 1731 in Bernalillo, NM. In 1756 when 

Don Juan Manuel Ambrosio was 25, he married Dona Maria Ballejo, 

daughter of Don Jose Ballejo & Dona Lugarda Chavez, in Tome’. Dona 

Maria was born in 1740 in Valencia. Dona Maria died in Tome’ on 23 Jun 

1834 when she was 94. Don Juan Manuel Ambrosio died before 1834.   

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Juan Ysidro was born in 1758.  On 22 Apr 1783, when 

Juan Ysidro was 25, he married Maria Antonia Montoya, 

daughter of Marcial Montoya & Brijida Vallejo, in 

Isleta. Maria Antonia died on 14 May 1813 in Valencia. 

 

ii. Maria Barthola was born on 24 Aug 1761 in Tome’. Maria 

Barthola died in 1835 when she was 73.  Maria Barthola 

married Phelipe Vigil. Phelipe died in 1844. 

 

iii. Antonio Jose was born on 5 Jan 1772.  He married Maria 

de la luz Gallego.  Antonio Jose died in Tome’ on 21 

Aug 1854 when he was 82. 

 

iv. Antonio de la Cruz was born on 14 Jul 1774.  Antonio 

de la Cruz married Maria Gertrudis. Maria Gertrudis 

died on 11 Sep 1815 in Tome’. 

 

 6 v. Don Juan Antonio de la Cruz. (Born 5 Jan 1772 - ) 

 

  vi. Don Manuel Antonio was born on 31 Aug 1767 in 

Valencia.  On 6 Sep 1789 when Don Manuel Antonio was 

22, he first married Mariana Antonia Sanchez, daughter 

of Diego Antonio Sanchez & Ana Maria Alvarez del 

Castillo, in Isleta. Mariana Antonia died in 1834. 

 

   On 10 Jun 1835 when Don Manuel Antonio was 67, he 

second married Dona Maria Andrea Martinez. 

 

  vii. Lorenzo de los Reyes was born on 1 Jan 1777.  Lorenzo 

de los Reyes first married Maria Dolores Chaves. Maria 

Dolores died on 10 Aug 1815. 

 

In 1816 when Lorenzo de los Reyes was 38, he second 

married Maria Josefa Vigil. 

 

  viii. Miguel Antonio married Antonia Rita Chaves. 

 

  ix. Juana Maria de la Concepcion was born in 1760. Juana 

Maria de la Concepcion married Joseph Vicente Duran. 
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     Sixth Generation 

---------------------------------------- 

 

6. Don Juan Antonio de la Cruz Aragon.  

 

Don Juan Antonio de la Cruz was born on 5 Jan 1772 in Valencia.  On 17 

Sep 1805 when Don Juan Antonio de la Cruz was 33, he married Dona 

Maria Lorenza Justa Baca, daughter of Don Jose Antonio Baca & 

Victoriana (Juana Maria Duran y) Chavez, in Tome’. Maria Lorenza Justa 

Baca was born on 23 Jun 1791 in Albuquerque. She died in Valencia on 

25 Jun 1852 when she was 61. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Jose Maria Alvino was born on 13 Dec 1810 in Tome’. On 

25 Aug 1836 when Jose Maria Alvino was 25, he married 

Maria Dolores Fabiana Aragon, daughter of Don Manuel 

Antonio Aragon & Mariana Antonia Sanchez, in Tome’.  

Maria Dolores was born on 24 Jan 1811 in Valencia.  

Jose Maria Alvino died in Tome’ on 15 Apr 1899 when he 

was 88. 

 

ii. Jose Gregorio Eugino was born on 14 Nov 1812 in 

Valencia.  In 1835 when Jose Gregorio Eugino was 22, 

he married Maria Juana Otero, in Tome’. Jose Gregorio 

Eugino died on 8 Feb 1878 when he was 65.  

 

  iii. Maria Soledad was born on 23 Sep 1814. 

 

  iv. Maria Gregoria was born on 10 Mar 1816 in Valencia. 

 

  v. Maria Gertrudes Higinia was born on 13 Jan 1818 in 

   Valencia. 

 

  vi. Manuel Ygnacio Bernabe was born on 10 Jul 1820 in 

Valencia.  He died on 18 Dec 1895, he was 75. 

 

  vii. Jose de Jesus was born on 23 May 1822 in Valencia. 

 

  viii. Maria Francisca de La Luz was born on 1 Mar 1824 in 

   Valencia. 

 

  ix. Juan Crecencio de Jesus was born on 24 Mar 1826 in 

   Valencia. 

 

  x. Maria Rita was born on 14 Mar 1828. 

 

  xi. Vicente Estanislado was born on 6 May 1830 in 

Valencia. 

 

  xii. Jesus Maria was born on 3 Nov 1834 in Valencia. 
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  xiii. Jose de Jesus was born on 3 Nov 1834 in Valencia.  He 

died in Valencia on 25 Jun 1897 when he was 62. 

 

  xiv. Pedro married Altagracia Chaves, daughter of Rafael 

   Chaves & Guadalupe Samora. 

 

  xv. Juan Jose was born about 1810.  On 15 Mar 1829 when 

Juan Jose was about 19, he first married Maria Ignacia 

Sanchez, daughter of Vicente Ignacio Sanchez & Maria 

Gertrudis Rael, in Tome’.  Maria Ignacia died on 30 

May 1850. 

 

On 14 Dec 1865 when Juan Jose was 55, he second 

married Gertrudis Martin, in Valencia. 

 

 7 xvi. Rafael. (About 1829 - May 1876) 
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     Seventh Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

7. Rafael Aragon.  

 

Rafael was born about 1829 in Valencia, NM.  On 12 Nov 1847 when 

Rafael was 18, he married Altagracia Garcia, daughter of Mariano 

Garcia & Juana Otero, in Tome’. Born on 8 May 1831 in Valencia.  

Altagracia died in Valencia on 26 Jan 1893 when she was 61. Rafael 

died in Valencia in May 1876 when he was 47.  

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Maria Justa was born on 8 Aug 1849 in Valencia. Maria 

Justa died in Valencia on 10 Oct 1850 when she was 1. 

 

  ii. Jose de Jesus was born on 7 Oct 1851. 

 

  iii. Jose was born on 4 Sep 1853. 

 

  iv. Carlota was born on 12 Nov 1856. On 21 Oct 1874 when 

   Carlota was 17, she married Vitoriano Otero, in Tome’. 

   Vitoriano died on 13 Jan 1898 in Tome’. 

 

  v. Jose Camildo was born on 11 Jan 1858 in Valencia.  On 

8 Jan 1879 when Jose Camildo was 20, he married Maria 

Nestora Perfilia, daughter of Desiderio Sanchez & 

Barbara Chaves, in Belen. Nestora was born on 26 Feb 

1863 in Los Chavez. Maria Nestora Perfilia died in 

Belen on 28 May 1935 when  she was 72. Jose Camildo 

died on 14 Feb 1937 when he was 79.  

 

  vi. Rufina Silveria was born on 29 Apr 1860 in Valencia. 

 

  vii. Filidelfia was born on 28 Apr 1865.  On 3 Nov 1880 

when Filidelfia was 15, she married Estanislao Otero, 

son of Ponciano Otero & Petra Otero, in Tome’.  

Estanislao was born about 1857 in Tome’. He died in 

Tome’ on 27 Oct 1941 when he was 84. Filidelfia died 

in Tome’ on 22 Nov 1938 when she was 73.  

 

 8 viii. Jose Maria de los Reyes. (1867-~1913) 

 

  ix. Felix was born on 21 Feb 1869. On 18 Nov 1889 when 

Felix was 20, he first married Manuela Aragon, 

daughter of Juan Francisco Aragon & Maria Josefa 

Chaves. Manuela was born on 19 Sep 1868 in Valencia. 

Manuela died on 1 Feb 1891 when she was 22. 

 

On 1 Mar 1892 when Felix was 23, he second married 

Josefa Cedillo, daughter of Ramon Cedillo & Leandra 

Otero, in Valencia. 
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Felix third married Zenida Otero, daughter of 

Octoviano Otero & Vicenta Cedillo. 

 

  x. Jose Aniseto Jorge was born on 17 Apr 1871. On 7 Jan 

1893 when he was 21, he married Maria Manuela Otero, 

daughter of Lorenzo Otero & Ramona Sedillo, in Tome’. 

 

  xi. Maria Miquela Suzana was born on 17 May 1873. 

 

  xii. Lorenza was born on 9 Aug 1875.  On 20 Aug 1894 when 

Lorenza was 19, she married Ignacio Otero, son of 

Lorenzo & Ramona Sedillo, in Tome’. 

 

  xiii. Crisologo was born about 1854 in Valencia. On 21 Oct 

1874, when Crisologo was 20, he married Francisquita 

Otero, daughter of Juan Rafael Otero & Juana 

Valdonado, in Tome’. Crisologo died in Tome’ in Jun 

1884 when he was 30. 
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Eighth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

8. Jose Maria de los Reyes Aragon.  

 

Jose Maria was born on 6 Jan 1867 in Valencia.  On 10 Jan 1887, when 

Jose Maria de los Reyes was 20, he first married Emilia Aragon, 

daughter of Juan Francisco Aragon & Maria Josefa Chaves, in Tome’. 

Emilia was born on 2 Mar 1870 in Valencia. She died in Valencia on 22 

Feb 1893 when she was 22.  Jose Maria de los Reyes died in Valencia 

about 1913 when he was 45. 

 

Jose Maria Aragon, who is Rafael's son, married Emilia, who is Juan 

Jose Aragon's grand-daughter. Rafael and Juan Jose are brothers. 

Rafael and Altagracia are related in 3rd degree with 4th degree of 

Consanguinity. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

  i. Francisca Josefina was born on 17 Sep 1887 in 

Valencia. 

 

ii. Crisologo was born on 17 Nov 1888 in Tome’. 

 

iii. Bruno Francisco. (1889-1960) 

 

iv. Rafael was born on 28 Feb 1892 in Valencia.  On 20 Aug 

1917, when Rafael was 25, he married Josefita Otero de 

Aragon, daughter of Emelio Otero & Virginia Orona, in 

Valencia. Rafael died in 1972 when he was 79.  

 

On 2 Mar 1894 when Jose Maria de los Reyes was 27, he second married 

Manuela Cedillo, daughter of Ramon Cedillo & Leandra Otero, in Tome’. 

Manuela was born on 23 Jun 1869 in Valencia. They had no children. 

 

On 7 Jan 1901, when Jose Maria de los Reyes was 34, he third married 

Leonides Orona, daughter of Francisco Orona & Refugio Maldonado, in 

Tome’. Leonides was born in Tome’. Leonides died on 18 Sep 1935 in 

Peralta. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Fransisquita was born in 1903 in Tome’. Fransisquita 

died in 1970 when she was 67. 

 

ii. Crisologo was born on 6 Jul 1905 in Tome’. Crisologo 

died on 17 Jun 1982 when he was 76. On 14 Sep 1925 

when Crisologo was 20, he married Maria Aragon, 

daughter of Romolo Aragon & Virginia Aragon, in Tome’. 

 

iii. Esiquiel was born on 10 Apr 1907 in Tome’. Esiquiel 

died on 17 Sep 1982 when he was 75. 
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iv. Maria Del Carmel Catalina (Tia Carmelita) was born on 

25 Nov 1910 in Tome’.  On 2 Jan 1931, when Maria Del 

Carmel Catalina (Tia Carmelita) was 20, she married 

Santa Cruz Moya, son of Eduardo Moya & Francisquita 

Lucero (“MaMa Kika”), in Valencia. Born on 19 Aug 1907 

in Tome’, Santa Cruz died in Albuquerque on 14 Apr 

1950 when he was 42. 

 

  v. Jose Maria died in Tome’. 

 

  vi. Julian died as a child in 1908 or 1909. 
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Ninth Generation  

 

9. Bruno Francisco Aragon.  

 

Bruno Francisco was born on 6 Oct 1889 in Valencia.  On 14 Nov 1910, 

when Bruno Francisco was 21, he married Blaza Estela Torres, daughter 

of Jose Manuel Martiniano Torres & Vitoriana de los Dolores Romero, in 

Tome’.  Blaza Estela was born on 6 Oct 1893 in Tome’. Blaza Estela 

died in El Cerro on 14 Sep 1920 when she was 26.  He died in the Belen 

Hospital on 6 Jan 1960 when he was 70. 

 

They had the following children: 

 

i. Emilia. (1911-2005) 

 

ii. Elena was born in 1914 in El Cerro.  On 20 Apr 1936, 

when Elena was 22, she married Celedon Chaves, son of 

Teofilo Chaves & Ramona (“La Mana”) Lucero, in Tome’. 

Celedon was born on 23 Sep 1915 in Tome’. Celedon died 

in Belen on 9 Feb 1971, he was 55. Elena died in El 

Cerro in 1977 when she was 63.  

 

iii. Cleotilde was born on 4 Mar 1916 in El Cerro. On 15 

Jan 1944, when Cleotilde (“Tillie”) was 27, she 

married George Baca, son of Liberato Baca & Biviana 

Marquez, in Tome’. George was born on 18 May 1916 in 

Gallup. Cleotilde died in the Belen Hospital on 17 Apr 

1969 when she was 53.  
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     Tenth Generation  

---------------------------------------- 

 

10. Emilia Aragon.  

 

Emilia was born on December 13, 1911 in Tome’, NM.  She was a 

homemaker and a devout Catholic. Emilia graduated from the 8th grade. 

She was the daughter of Bruno Francisco Aragon & Blaza Estela Torres.  

On December 26, 1927 when Emilia was 16, she married Antonio Moya, who 

was born on December 19, 1904 in Adelino. He died in the Belen 

Hospital on July 13, 1952 when he was 47. He was buried on July 16, 

1952 in Tome’.  He was a mechanic, farmer, welder, & bus driver. He 

graduated from Belen High School and was Catholic.  Emilia died at 

home in Tome’ on October 6, 2005 when she was 93.  

 

They had the following children: 

 

i.   Stella was born on March 29, 1930 in Tome’.  On July 2, 
1956, when Stella was 26, she married Dan de Baca in 

Tome’. Dan was born on June 30, 1933.  They had four 

children: Diana, Danny, Ralph, and Renee. 

 

ii.   Bertha Maria was born on October 5, 1931 in Tome’.  On 
April 15, 1961 when Bertha Maria was 29, she married 

Jerome  Barreras in Tome’. Born on 18th of December.  

 

iii.   Lucy was born on February 25, 1935 in Tome’. Lucy was 
married to Phil Peralta, born on March 30, 1934. Lucy 

died in Tome’ on June 27, 2013 when she was 78. They had 

five children: Anthony, Mary Lee, Michael, Fred and John. 

 

iv.   Amarante Aurelio was born on June 16, 1941 in Tome’.  On 
December 26, 1959 when Amarante Aurelio was 18, he 

married Margaret Otero, daughter of Fidel Otero & 

Beatrice MacBride, in Los Lunas. Margaret was born on 

October 27, 1940.  Amarante died in Albuquerque on 

December 11, 2009  when he was 68.  They had three 

children: Richard, Brian, and Monty. 

 

v.   Concepcion (Connie) was born on December 1, 1942 in 
Tome’. On October 18, Concepcion (Connie) married Lorenzo 

Baca, son of Herman Baca & Andrea Orona. They had three 

children: Lisa, Laura, and Angela. 

 

vi.   Francisco Antonio was born on September 19, 1944 in 
Tome’. He got a Bachelor’s of Science in Education from 

UNM. On July 17, 1971 when Francisco Antonio was 26, he 

married  Lydia Chavez, daughter of Jose Chavez & Josefita 

Torres, in Peralta. Lydia was born on September 9, 1945 

in Peralta.  Divorced. 

 

vii.   Gilbert Ralph was born on September 22, 1948 in Tome’. 
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 Juana Victoria child of 4 

 Julian child of 8 

 Lorenza child of 7 

 Lorenzo de los Reyes child of 5 

 Manuel Ygnacio Bernabe child of 6 

 Maria Barbara child of 4 

 Maria Barthola child of 5 

 Maria Francisca de La Luz child of 6 

 Maria Gertrudes Higinia child of 6 

 Maria Gertrudis child of 3 

 Maria Gregoria child of 6 

 Maria Justa child of 7 

 Maria Miquela Suzana child of 7 

 Maria Rita child of 6 

 Maria Soledad child of 6 

 Miguel Antonio child of 5 

 Nicolas de 4 

 Pedro child of 6 

 Rafael 7 

 Rufina Silveria child of 7 
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 Vicente Estanislado child of 6 

Aragon y Aragon  

 Rafael child of 8 

Baca  

 Dona Maria Lorenza Justa spouse of 6 

 Luisa spouse of 3 

Ballejo  

 Dona Maria spouse of 5 

Cedillo  

 Manuela spouse of 8 

Gallego  

 Margarita spouse of 4 

Garcia  

 Altagracia spouse of 7 

Moya  

 Amarante Aurelio child of 10 

 Antonio L spouse of 10 

 Bertha Maria child of 10 

 Concepcion (Connie) child of 10 

 Francisco Antonio child of 10 

 Gilbert Ralph child of 10 
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 Stella child of 10 
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 Sebastiana spouse of 3 

Quintana  
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Rueles Galindo  

 Mensia de las spouse of 2 
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Torres  

 Blaza Estela spouse of 9 

 

 


